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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,
SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report together with 
the financial statements of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2023.

Financial Performance: -

The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023 are as under:						            ( ` In lacs)

Description Current Financial 
Year (2023)

Previous Financial 
Year (2022)

Revenue from Operations 13,008.38 11,452.03

Other Income 498.20 196.10

Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 
Exceptional items and Tax Expense

7,430.81 7,035.13

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 139.85 78.98

Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional 
items and Tax Expense

7,290.96 6,956.14

Less: Finance Costs 96.34 2.44

Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense

7,194.62 6,953.70

Add/(less): Exceptional items - -

Profit /loss before Tax Expense 7,194.62 6,953.70

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 1,844.06 1,756.01

Profit /loss for the year (1) 5,350.56 5,197.69

Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) - -

Total (1+2) 5,350.56 5,197.69

Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 6,609.01 1,411.32

Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Re-
serve

- -

Less: Transfer to Reserves - -

Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -

Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -

Balance carried forward 11,959.57 6,609.01
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 Method of Accounting: -

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) from the financial year 
ending 31st March, 2019. IND AS 116 on Accounting on Lease came into effect on 01st 
April, 2019. Accordingly, Company has adopted IND AS 116 and applied the standard to 
Long term Lease contract existing on 01st April 2020.

Capital Adequacy: -

The Regulator i.e. Pension Fund Regulatory & Development Authority (PFRDA) has not 
prescribed any Capital Adequacy Ratio for the Pension Fund Industry. However, PFRDA 
vide PFRDA (Pension Fund) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2020 dated 04th February, 
2020 requires the Pension Fund to achieve minimum tangible net worth of Rs. Fifty crore 
(50) crores or such higher amount. Your Company is in compliance with the net worth 
requirement. As on 31st March 2023, the net worth of your Company is Rs. 149.59 crores.

Share Capital: -

The Authorized Share capital of your Company stood at Rs. 100 (Hundred) crores as on 
31st March 2023. The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company stood 
at Rs. Thirty (30) crores comprising of Three (3) crores equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid. 

The shareholding pattern is as under: -				  

Name of Shareholders % of Holding
State Bank of India* 60%
SBI Funds Management Private Limited 20%
SBI Capital Markets Limited 20%

* Shareholding alongwith its nominees

During the financial year under review, your Company had not issued any equity/ 
preference shares or any securities which carry a right or option to convert such securities 
into shares, equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares, warrants, 
debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities or employee stock options.

There was no reduction of share capital or buyback of shares, change in the capital 
structure resulting from restructuring, change in voting rights or re-classification or 
sub-division of the authorized share capital.

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies: -

Your Company continues to be a Subsidiary Company of State Bank of India. Your Company 
does not have any Subsidiaries, Associate or Joint Venture Companies.
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Dividend: -

Your Company has posted a Profit After Tax of Rs. 5,350.56 Lakhs for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2023. To conserve the profit for future business requirements, the  
Directors of your Company do not propose any dividend for F.Y. 2022-23.

Amount to be carried forward to Reserves: -

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the 
Reserves for the year under review. The Company proposed to retain the whole amount 
in the Profit & Loss Account.

Change in the nature of Business, if any: - 

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of your 
Company.

Economic Environment: - 

Global Economy 

Global growth in CY22 at 3.2% came below expectation largely impacted by Ukraine war 
and slowdown in China. Central Banks faced a difficult task of taming inflation via higher 
interest rates without triggering a recession. Headline inflation is now seen declining, 
but core inflation remains elevated, held up by strong service price increases, higher 
margins in some sectors and cost pressures from tight labor markets. Post Silicon Valley 
Bank and Signature Bank collapse resulted in credit tightening which eased the pressure 
on Fed for further rate hike. The Federal Reserve had series of rate hikes including 25 
bps in March 2023 raising the Fed funds rate to a range of 4.75% to 5%.

US economy in CY22 reported growth of 2.1% y-o-y as compared to 5.9% y-o-y in the 
previous year. Euro Zone slipped to 3.5% y-o-y in CY22 from high growth of 5.3% in CY21 
after making come back from Covid induced slowdown. China’s stringent zero covid 
policy impacted the business activity across the country reducing its growth from 8.4% 
in CY21 to 3% in CY22. 

Brent declined by 26.1% in FY23 anticipating a fall in demand due to overall expected 
slowdown, closing at USD 79.77 as on 31.03.2023 from USD 107.91 as on 31.03.2022. 
The Bloomberg commodity Index fell in line with brent by 15.2% in FY23. The US dollar 
index strengthened from 98.31 as on 31.03.2022 to 102.51 as on 31.03.2023. 
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Domestic Economy 

Growth

India’s real GDP growth for Q4 FY23 at 6.1% was ahead of market expectation compared 
to 4.5% in Q3 FY23. Strong growth in the last quarter was driven by strongest sequential 
investment growth and government spending, however consumption was a drag. For full 
year FY23 GDP is estimated at 7.2%, higher than NSO’s advance estimates of 7%.  The 
upward revision is led by Q4 GDP growth coming in far stronger than earlier estimated. 
For FY23, on the production side, industry led to moderation in the overall GVA growth, 
even as the performance of agriculture, forestry and fishing and services improved 
relative to FY22. The nominal GDP for FY23 has been pegged at Rs. 272.4 trillion as per 
the Provisional Estimates, growing at a nominal rate of 16.1%. 

Inflation

Inflation in the entire FY23 remained above the MPC threshold. CPI declined from 6.95% in 
March 2022 to 5.66% in March 2023. The decline was driven by the food and miscellaneous 
category offset by an increase in housing and fuel prices.  Core CPI continued to remain 
elevated at 5.95% in March 2023, down from 6.53% in March 2022. High Household coupled 
with increase in services like Education and Personal care contributed to high core 
inflation. Average Retail CPI and Core inflation for FY23 (Apr 2022 – Mar 2023) stood at 
6.66% and 6.30%, respectively. Cooling of input prices on the back of fall in commodity 
prices contributed to WPI inflation declining to 1.34% in March 2023 from 14.63% in March 
2022. Average WPI inflation for FY23 (Apr 2022 – Mar 2023) stood at 9.59%. 

Fiscal Deficit

The central government managed to achieve a 6.4% fiscal deficit target for FY23 down 
from 6.7% in the last financial year. The government was aided by buoyant tax receipts 
and some fiscal headroom due to lower food and fertilizer subsidy bills. Higher dividends 
by central public sector enterprises offset the shortfall in disinvestment revenue for FY23. 
The government in its FY24 union budget prioritized fiscal consolidation with focus on 
capital expenditure to achieve higher medium-term GDP growth. It has a targeted central 
fiscal deficit of 5.9% in FY24BE, staying on course to reach the targeted 4.5% by FY26.     

External Sector

India’s current account deficit (CAD) for Q3FY23 at USD 18.2 billion (2.2% of GDP), 
significantly lower on sequential basis from the USD 30.9 billion (3.7% of GDP) in Q2FY23. 
The lower CAD can be attributed to the narrowing of the merchandise trade deficit, 
which decreased to USD 72.7 billion in Q3FY23 coupled with robust services and private 
transfer receipts. CAD for 9MFY23 reported at USD 67.1 billion (2.7% of the GDP). For 
the nine months ended Dec 2022, depletion to foreign exchange reserves (on Balance of 
Payment basis) was USD 14.7 billion. Capital account balance for 9MFY23 was supported 
by banking capital despite lower portfolio flows compared previous year. 
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Outlook 

As per OECD, Global growth is projected to remain at below trend rates in CY23 and 
CY24, at 2.6% and 2.9% respectively, with policy tightening continuing to take effect. 
Inflation is projected to moderate gradually over CY23 and CY24 but to remain above 
central bank objectives until the latter half of CY24 in most countries. The improvement 
in the outlook is still fragile. Risks have become somewhat better balanced but remain 
tilted to the downside. Uncertainty about the course of the war in Ukraine and its 
broader consequences is a key concern. The strength of the impact from monetary policy 
changes is difficult to gauge and could continue to expose financial vulnerabilities from 
high debt and stretched asset valuations, and also in specific financial market segments. 
Pressures in global energy markets could also reappear, leading to renewed price spikes 
and higher inflation1.  

Domestically, despite global slowdown concerns, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC), 
revised its real GDP growth for FY24 to 6.5% in March 2023 bi-monthly monetary policy. 
The upward revision of 10 bps in Growth was based on strengthening rural demand from 
good rabi production, and support to manufacturing and investment activity from the 
central government’s focus on capital expenditure, improving capacity utilization, robust 
credit growth, and moderation in commodity prices. Additionally, MPC revised the FY24 
average inflation down by 10 bps to 5.2% considering good rabi production and easing 
cost, which is expected to moderate the pace of output price increases.

MPC in March 2023, kept the repo rate unchanged at 6.50% and maintained the policy 
stance as ‘withdrawal of accommodation’ emphasizing on the fact that MPC is open to 
rate hike in future if the situations warrant for such event. This was contrary to the 
consensus market expectation of a rate hike of 25 bps. Hence, benchmark G-sec yields 
moved down by 10 bps while 5 bps movement was seen in medium duration and long 
duration after the policy. RBI remains comfortable on the growth front, for now, though 
risks to the outlook will be from the external sources. We expect longer pause by RBI 
post reaching to peak of the rate hike cycle. FY24 is expected to be a year of accruals 
with some element of mark to market gains in the later part of the financial year.  

H1FY24 borrowing calendar shows that the government will borrow Rs 8.8 trillion 
through weekly G-sec auctions. This accounts for ~58% of the total borrowing. Further, 
the proportion of the longer duration bonds in the auction has been increased to ~33% 
of the total issue. A higher supply of bonds each week may put pressure on the long end 
of the yield curve with 10 year benchmark creating floor at ~7.0% 

FY23 was a challenging year for the Indian equity markets. While the market had to 
navigate continued global macro headwinds such as rising inflation and volatile crude oil 
prices, fresh set of concerns came in the  form of collapse of Silicon Valley Bank in US 
leading to run on regional rural banks and contagion fear from Credit Suisse bankruptcy 

1	 OECD Economic Outlook, Interim Report March 2023: A Fragile Recovery
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leading to its abrupt merger with the larger Swiss rival UBS Bank. Further uncertainty 
around Adani credit crisis led to carnage in Adani Group names and had a domino impact 
on India financials sector with continued FII selling, souring the market sentiments. FIIs 
for FY23 witnessed selling of USD 5.1 billion.  

Nifty declined by 0.6% in FY23. Indian market underperformed the developed markets 
in Europe. US market and MSCI emerging market index underperformed India. Banking, 
Capital Goods, FMCG, IT and Autos were the clear outperforming sectors for the year 
while all other sectors including Information Technology underperformed for the FY23.

While currently Nifty Index is trading at 18x on FY24E- which is in line with its long-term 
average, there are fears of downgrades in earnings given growth in financial sector which 
comprises 60% of the Nifty index earnings is likely to witness compression in NIMs due to 
continued rise on deposit rates. Additionally, volatility in Brent oil prices impact nearly 
35% of the Nifty earnings, which remains another key risk to Nifty earnings. 

On overall basis, we continue to adopt bottoms up approach in identifying high quality 
companies available at reasonable valuations while at the same time remaining positive 
on a) Financials given asset quality holding up b) domestic economy driven sectors where 
consumption continues such as Autos, Infrastructure and Capital Goods.

Review of Business Performance and State of the Company’s Affairs

Your Company’s mission is to provide credible, professional and customer focused Pension 
Fund management and POP Business solutions.

The performance of your Company during the financial year 2022-23 in respect of various 
business activities are as under:

1)   Fund Management Activity

•	 During the year under review, your Company closed the fiscal with AUM of Rs. 3,39,006 
crores representing a growth of 20% over the previous fiscal, to retain lead position 
amongst Pension Fund Managers (10 Nos) in terms of market share, 34.52% of total 
AUM for the Government Sector and 48.83% of total AUM for the Private Sector with 
overall Market Share of 37.71%.

•	 During the year under review, your Company outperformed the benchmark for 
Scheme CG, Scheme SG, Scheme Corporate CG, Scheme NPS Lite and Scheme Atal 
Pension Yojana. 
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•	 The details of Asset Under Management (AUM) growth of the Company:	

•	 As per the PFRDA guidelines on Common Stewardship Code, your Company has in 
place a Comprehensive policy to protect the subscribers’ interest. The policy broadly 
covers managing the conflict of interest, monitoring the investee companies, active 
intervention/engagement with the investee companies, clear policy on voting and 
periodically reporting of the same to the regulator.
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•	 The Scheme wise Assets Under Management (AUM) are as under:

( ` In Crores)

Name of Schemes AUM as on 
31st March, 2023

AUM as on 
31st March,2022

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme E – Tier I

10,849.19             8,382.63 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme E – Tier II

374.67                334.35 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme C – Tier I

6,220.59            4,775.32 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme C – Tier II

204.96                190.78 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme G – Tier I

12,949.83            9,723.84 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme G – Tier II

390.70                340.80 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme A – Tier I

54.09                 35.69 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme State Govt.

1,53,441.33       1,28,187.09 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme Central Govt.

87,438.96           76,480.44 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme NPS Lite

1,993.03             1,903.91 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme Corporate CG

55,830.59           44,991.67 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private Limited – 
Scheme Atal Pension Yojana

9,076.54             7,126.91 

NPS Trust A/c SBI Pension Fund - Scheme Tax Saver 
Tier II

3.73 2.22

NPS Trust A/c SBI Pension Fund - Scheme APY Fund 
Scheme

177.7 -

Total 3,39,006.01 2,82,475.65
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•	 The performance of the schemes managed by the Company for the financial year 
are as under:

                (Details in percentage)

Name of Schemes Benchmark

Last 1 
year 

return

Bench-
mark

Return 
for last 
1 year

Return 
since
Incep-
tion 

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme E – Tier I

NIFTY 100 
TRI* 1.81% -0.61% 10.18%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme E – Tier II

NIFTY 100 
TRI* 2.15% -0.61% 10.02%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme C – Tier I

NPS – Cor-
porate Bond 

Index
3.41% 4.00% 9.68%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme C – Tier II

NPS – Cor-
porate Bond 

Index
3.46% 4.00% 9.22%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme G – Tier I

NPS – Govt. 
Securities 

Index
4.58% 5.21% 9.04%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme G – Tier II

NPS – Govt. 
Securities 

Index
4.54% 5.21% 9.02%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme A – Tier I

NPS – Cor-
porate Bond 

Index
1.02% NA 8.42%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme State Govt.

NPS – Govt. 
Pattern Index 4.24% 4.10% 9.16%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme Central Govt.

NPS – Govt. 
Pattern Index 4.30% 4.10% 9.49%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme NPS Lite

NPS – Govt. 
Pattern Index 4.33% 4.10% 9.58%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme Corporate CG

NPS – Govt. 
Pattern Index 4.28% 4.10% 9.13%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme Atal Pension Yojana

NPS – Govt. 
Pattern Index 3.99% 4.10% 8.50%

NPS Trust – A/c SBI Pension Funds Private 
Limited – Scheme Tax Saver Tier II 4.05% NA 3.45%

*  We have benchmarked A Tier I against C Tier I for internal use as there is no existing 
benchmark for the same.  
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Business Strategy and Outlook:

During the year, the fresh inflows of Rs. 32,090 crores coupled with accruals and net 
of appreciation on account of market valuation took the total AUM under Government 
Sector NPS to Rs. 2,40,880 crores with a market share of 34.52% (Rs. 6,97,743 crores). 
Under the Private Sector NPS (including NPS Lite), the fresh inflows of Rs. 20,620 crores 
and net of appreciation took the AUM to Rs 98,125 crores with a market share of 48.79% 
(Rs. 2,01,120 crores). Overall, your company has recorded a growth of 20.01% in its AUM 
during the year, which increased from Rs. 2,82,476 crores to Rs 3,39,006 crores. Overall 
market share of your Company remained at 37.71%.

2)   POP Activity

The company has been functioning as a POP since 2019 after receiving the license from 
the regulator. POP onboards new subscribers under the “All Citizen Model” and new 
subscribers and corporates under the “Corporate Sector Model”. POP also conducts 
awareness sessions for NPS subscribers and services the NPS accounts of the associated 
subscribers.

Business:
Cumulative Figures (Net of exits & shifts)

As of 
31/03/2022

As of 
31/03/2023

Total Corporate Clients 3403 4201
Total UoS Clients 3015 3594
Total 6418 7795
				  
Quarterly onboarding performance

  As of Retail Corp Total
21-22   3015 3744 6759

  Jun-22 62 99 161
  Sep-22  57 99 156
  Dec-22 132 61 193
  Mar-22 328 198  481

22-23   3594 4201 7795

Strategies going ahead.

1.	 Partnership with annuity team of SBI Life to promote NPS to Central & State  
Government subscribers. 

2.	 Participating in all the synergy meets scheduled by SBI for its subsidiaries to increase 
awareness of NPS and schedule joint meetings with the Corporates associated with 
SBI & other subsidiary companies.

3.	 Engaging with CAG, CCG and SME branches of SBI to reach out to the Corporates for 
bringing them under ambit of Corporate NPS.
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4.	 NPS awareness sessions for corporates are held regularly to educate the  
decision makers and employees to have better understanding of NPS and its benefits.  
Corporate Support in following areas is being offered to facilitate corporate  
onboarding:

a.	 Support to CPSEs/corporates to increase product awareness about NPS benefits 
over existing Superannuation Fund (SAF) scheme.

b.	 Switching over from Superannuation Funds to NPS

c.	 Documentation support for closure of existing superannuation schemes, if desired 
by the corporates.

d.	 HR Department Handholding to support them during NPS implementation for the 
employees.

e.	 Employee engagement programs to emphasize the importance of choosing the 
right PFM and how allocation of funds.

f.	 Cost benefits to the corporate while dealing with SBIPFPL as POP and as a PFM

g.	 Special handholding for Nodal Officers across different geographies.

h.	 Organizing webinars for different offices/locations as per the requirement of the 
corporate.

5.	 Branches at various locations are opened to increase overall business. 15 Branch 
setup has been done. Recruitment and operationalization of a few branches is in 
completion mode as on 31.03.2023.

6.	 Social media team is being set up to increase visibility of NPS on the digital front 
and provide an alterative mode of distribution to onboard new subscribers.

7.	 Various distribution models (Business correspondent/POP SE etc.) are explored to 
offer NPS to more customers across various geographies.

Risk Management: -

In terms of the provisions of Section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also in 
compliance with Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension Fund) 
Regulations, 2015 (including amendments thereof), the Company is having a proper risk 
management framework in place for identification, measurement, management, control 
and mitigation of various risks inherent in Company’s business and various NPS schemes 
managed by the Company.

As per the Investment Management Agreement entered by the Company with NPS Trust, 
a comprehensive Board approved Risk Management Policy aligned with the SBI Group 
Risk Management Policy is in place which is reviewed and duly approved by the Risk 
Management Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors at half-yearly intervals. 
The Risk Management Policy covers Credit & Investment Risk, Operational Risk, Market 
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Risk, Liquidity Risk, Reputation Risk and other risks which includes compliance, contagion, 
counterparty, Information Technology and strategic risk etc. Key risk indicators have been 
defined for risk measurement which are duly monitored. We have adopted Risk Control 
Self-Assessment (RCSA) methodology to identify organization wide risks which is duly 
escalated to the Risk Management Committee of the Board. 

Risk profiling of the various scheme of NPS has been introduced by PFRDA to disclose on 
risk involved in various scheme of NPS for awareness of the subscribers, therefore, pension 
funds are required to disclose risk-profile of the NPS schemes at quarterly intervals.

The Company has in place Information Technology Policy, Information Security Policy 
and Cyber Security policy to implement security measures for preserving the security 
of data and technology infrastructure which is approved by the Board of the Company. 
The IT team works towards managing the confidentiality, integrity and availability of 
data across organization process covering all the employees, contractors, and anyone 
who has permanent or temporary access to the systems & hardware and securing all the 
applications and systems on an ongoing basis.

Cyber security awareness and training to all employees are provided through various 
initiatives such as advisories issued by the IT team, conducting Risk Awareness programme 
etc.

The Risk Management Committee of the Board and Board of Directors periodically reviews 
the Risk Management Policy, procedures & process and functions of the Company. It also 
reviews the performance of various schemes managed by the Company at quarterly 
intervals.

The Chief Risk Officer is entrusted with the risk management function & implementation 
of risk management framework who reports directly to the Managing Director & CEO 
and periodically update the Risk Management Committee on risk profiles. Board level 
oversight is exercised through the Risk Management Committee of the Company which 
oversees formulation and review of risk management policy.

Board of Directors:-

The Board of Directors of your Company oversees the business and operations of 
the Company. Your Company has an optimum combination of Non-Independent and 
Independent Directors. As on 31st March 2023, the Board of Directors of your Company 
comprises of Seven Directors, which include Four Independent Directors and Three 
Nominee Directors including the Managing Director & CEO.

Shri Ashwini Kumar Tewari (DIN: 08797991), Nominee Director / Chairman, nominated 
by State Bank of India, Holding Company had resigned from position of Director of the 
Company with effect from 14th July 2022 as he stepped down from the position of  
Managing Director (IB, T&S) of Holding Company.

Shri Swaminathan Janakiraman (DIN: 08516241) was appointed as Nominee Director / 
Chairman, nominated by State Bank of India, Holding Company with effect from 14th 
July 2022.
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Prof. Gitika Kapoor (DIN: 01815183) ceases to be Independent Director on the Board 
of the Company on account of completion of her second term with effect from 24th 
December 2022. 

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation of the valuable contribution made 
by Prof. Gitika Kapoor during her association with your Company.

Shri Mohan Vinayak Harshey (DIN: 00987969) was appointed as additional Independent 
Director on Board of the Company w.e.f. 19th January 2023.

The Members in the AGM held on 23rd August 2022 re-appointed Shri Adayapalam 
Natarajan Appaiah (DIN: 03479896), Independent Director of your Company for a further 
period of 3 consecutive years i.e. from 27th July, 2022 to 26th July, 2025.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Adayapalam Natarajan Appaiah is a person of Integrity 
and possesses the relevant expertise and experience (including the proficiency) and fulfills 
the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as an Independent 
Director.

The Members in the AGM held on 23rd August 2022 re-appointed Shri Chintaman Mahadev 
Dixit (DIN: 00524318), Independent Director of your Company for a further period of 3 
consecutive years i.e. from 17th July, 2022 to 16th July, 2025.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Chintaman Mahadev Dixit is a person of Integrity and 
possesses the relevant expertise and experience (including the proficiency) and fulfills 
the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as an Independent 
Director.

Statement on declaration given by Independent Directors under sub-section (6) of 
Section 149: -

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to a Private Limited Company. 
However, in terms of Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Pension 
Fund) Regulations, 2015 (including amendments thereof), your Company has appointed 
Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors of your Company on a voluntary basis have submitted a 
declaration confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under 
sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The above declaration also states that they have complied with sub rule (1) and sub 
rule (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 
2014 with respect to inclusion of their name in the databank of the Indian Institute of 
Corporate Affairs at Manesar and will also file an application for the renewal as an when 
required.
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Statement on Non-disqualification of Directors: -

All the Directors of your Company have submitted the declaration confirming that they 
are not disqualified under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 to act as Director.

Key Managerial Personnel: -

Mr. Tejas Mehta (ACS: 42593) resigned as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
of the Company with effect from 30th June 2022. 

Ms. Jyoti Kalloli (ACS: 20960) was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company with effect from 14th July 2022.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Anthony 
Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO, Shri Venkata Ratnam Vakacharla, Chief Financial 
Officer and Operations Manager and Ms.  Jyoti Kalloli, Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer are designated as the “Key Managerial Personnel” of your Company during the 
close of the financial year under review.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: -

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) & Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Directors hereby state that: -

(i)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(ii)	 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them  
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end 
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period.

(iii)	 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of  
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for  
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other  
irregularities;

(iv)	 the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(v)	  the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the  
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were  
operating effectively; and 

(vi)	 the Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the  
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating  
effectively. 
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Board Meetings: -

During the financial year under review, seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors 
of your Company were held on the said dates i.e. 18th April, 2022, 07th June, 2022, 
14th July, 2022, 19th October, 2022, 23rd December, 2022, 19th January, 2023 and 29th 
March, 2023.

Corporate Governance: - 

As part of good corporate governance, your Company endeavors to effectively manage 
the business and enhance the long–term interests of various stakeholders. 

In pursuance of these objectives, the Board actively monitors your Company’s operations 
and exercises fiduciary responsibilities with utmost commitment to enhance transparency, 
disclosures and adherence to core values. The functioning of the Board is further 
supplemented by various committees which have been constituted i.e. Audit, HR & CSR 
Investment & Risk Management Committee.

Committees: -

1)	 Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company: -

In terms of the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company 
had voluntarily constituted an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company as per the terms of reference mentioned in the said Section along with the 
operational requirements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the 
following Members at the beginning of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri C.M. Dixit, Independent Director.    
(ii)	 Shri Adayapalam Natarajan Appaiah, Independent Director.
(iii)	 Prof. Gitika Kapoor, Independent Director.        

Prof. Gitika Kapoor ceased to be the member of Audit Committee w.e.f. 24th December 
2022 on account of completion of her second term as Independent Director on the 
Board of the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the 
following Members at the end of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri C.M. Dixit, Independent Director    
(ii)	 Shri Adayapalam Natarajan Appaiah, Independent Director

During the financial year under review, Five (5) meetings of the Audit Committee 
of the Board of Directors of your Company were held on 18th April, 2022, 14th July, 
2022, 18th October, 2022, 18th January, 2023 and 28th March, 2023.

During the financial year 2022-23, there were no instances where the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee were not accepted by the Board.
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2)	 HR Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company:-

The HR Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the 
following Members at the end of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri Saurabh Chandra, Independent Director    
(ii)	 Shri A. N. Appaiah, Independent Director
(iii)	 Shri Raj Vikash Verma, Nominee Director   
(iv)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO

During the financial year under review, Two (2) meetings of the HR Committee 
of the Board of Directors of your Company were held on 08th April, 2022 and  
18th October, 2022.

3)	 CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company: -

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company 
had constituted CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company as per 
the terms of reference mentioned in the said Section along with the operational 
requirements.

The CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the 
following Members at the time of formation during the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri Saurabh Chandra, Independent Director    
(ii)	 Prof. Gitika Kapoor, Independent Director
(iii)	 Shri Raj Vikash Verma, Nominee Director   
(iv)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO

Prof. Gitika Kapoor ceased to be the member of CSR Committee w.e.f. 24th December 
2022 on account of completion of her 2nd term as Independent Director on the Board 
of Company.

The CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the 
following Members at the end of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri Saurabh Chandra, Independent Director    
(ii)	 Shri Mohan Harshey, Independent Director
(iii)	 Shri Raj Vikash Verma, Nominee Director   
(iv)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO

Shri Mohan Harshey, Independent Director was inducted as member of CSR Committee 
w.e.f. 19th January, 2023.

During the financial year under review, one meeting of the CSR Committee was held 
on 18th October, 2022.
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4)	 Investment Committee of the Company: -

In terms of the Investment Management Agreement signed and executed with NPS 
Trust and the PFRDA (Pension Funds) Regulations, 2015, the Investment Committee 
was constituted with the following terms of reference: -

•	 to draw, implement and periodically review the investment Policy;
•	 to ensure that all investments are carried out as per the provisions of PFRDA 

Guidelines/ Directions and to ensure that all investments are made consistent 
with the protection, safety and liquidity of such funds, in the interest of the 
subscribers;  

•	 to review the changes, if any, in its team and any other matter relating to 
investments; 

•	 To recommend the Stewardship Policy of the Company;
•	 To recommend the Voting Policy of the Company;
•	 To review the Letters, Advisory notes, Circulars issued by PFRDA related to the 

Investments of the Company;
•	 To recommend the Company’s Investment Policy of the Company;
•	 such other responsibilities as prescribed by PFRDA.

The Investment Committee of your Company comprises of the following Members at 
the beginning of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri A. N. Appaiah, Independent Director    
(ii)	 Prof. Gitika Kapoor, Independent Director       
(iii)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO
(iv)	 Shri Sandeep Pandey, Chief Investment Officer 
(v)	 Shri Ram Sushil Singh, Chief Risk Officer 

Prof. Gitika Kapoor ceased to be the member of Investment Committee w.e.f. 24th 
December 2023 on account of completion of her 2nd term as Independent Director 
on the Board of Company.

The Investment Committee of your Company comprises of the following Members at 
the end of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri A. N. Appaiah, Independent, Director
(ii)	 Shri Mohan Harshey, Independent Director
(iii)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO
(iv)	 Shri Sandeep Pandey, Chief Investment Officer 
(v)	 Shri Ram Sushil Singh, Chief Risk Officer 

Shri Mohan Harshey, Independent Director was inducted as member of Investment 
Committee w.e.f. 19th January, 2023.

During the financial year under review, Five (5) meetings of the Investment Committee 
of your Company were held on 18th April, 2022, 14th July, 2023, 18th October, 2022, 
18th January, 2023 and 28th March, 2023.
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5)	 Risk Management Committee of the Company: -

In terms of the Investment Management Agreement signed with NPS Trust and the 
PFRDA (Pension Funds) Regulations, 2015, the Risk Management Committee of the 
Company was constituted with the following terms of reference: -

•	 To assess the Company’s risk profile and key areas of risk in particular;
•	 To develop and implement a risk management framework and internal control 

system;
•	 To examine and determine the sufficiency of the Company’s internal process 

for reporting on and managing key risk areas;
•	 to draw, implement and periodically review the Risk Policy;
•	 to review issues raised by Internal Audit that impact the risk management 

framework;
•	 to oversee the risk management functions, disaster recovery and business 

contingency plans; 
•	 To recommend the Outsourcing Policy of the Company;
•	 To recommend the Information Technology Cyber Security Policy of the 

Company;
•	 To recommend the Disaster recovery and business contingency plans;
•	 To recommend the Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) which is presented the Group 

RCMC;
•	 such other responsibilities as prescribed by PFRDA.

The Risk Management Committee of the Company comprises of the following Members 
at the beginning of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri Saurabh Chandra, Independent Director      
(ii)	 Shri C.M. Dixit, Independent Director      
(iii)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO
(iv)	 Shri Sandeep Pandey, Chief Investment Officer
(v)	 Shri Ram Sushil Singh, Chief Risk Officer
(vi)	 Shri Tejas Mehta, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

The Risk Management Committee of your Company comprises of the following Members 
at the end of the financial year under review:

(i)	 Shri Saurabh Chandra, Independent Director      
(ii)	 Shri C.M. Dixit, Independent Director      
(iii)	 Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO
(iv)	 Shri Sandeep Pandey, Chief Investment Officer 
(v)	 Shri Ram Sushil Singh, Chief Risk Officer
(vi)	 Ms. Jyoti Kalloli, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Owing to resignation of Shri Tejas Mehta and appointment of Ms. Jyoti Kalloli as the 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 14th July, 2022 the 
Risk Management Committee was reconstituted.
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During the financial year under review, Five (5) meetings of the Risk Management 
Committee of your Company were held on 18th April, 2022, 14th July, 2023,  
18th October, 2022, 18th January, 2023 and 28th March, 2023.

Auditors: -

M/s. Talati & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 110757W) were appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 by the Comptroller 
and Auditor General of India (CAG) pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 vide their letter dated 01st September, 2022.

M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101961W/W-
100036) were appointed as the Statutory Scheme Auditors for NPS Schemes under the 
National Pension System (NPS) for the financial year 2022-23 by the NPS Trust for carrying 
out audit of the NPS schemes managed by SBI Pension Funds Private Limited.

M/s. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103264W) were 
appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for FY 2022-23.  M/s. Gokhale & Sathe 
conducted the Audit till period ended 30th June 2022. Owing to their resignation, the 
Board of your Company had appointed M/s. Dhiraj & Dheeraj, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 103264W) w.e.f. 01st July 2022 as the Internal Auditors to conduct 
the Internal Audit of the investment operations of the Company in accordance with the 
scope prescribed in the PFRDA (Appointment of Internal Auditors) Guidance Note, 2013. 

M/s. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103264W) 
were appointed as the concurrent Auditor for NAV Certification of the Company for  
FY 2022-23.  M/s. Gokhale & Sathe conducted the Audit till period ended 30th September 
2022. Owing to their resignation, the Board of your Company appointed M/s. Rodi Dabir 
& Co., Chartered Accountants w.e.f. 01st October 2022 as the Concurrent Auditor for 
conducting Concurrent audit of NAV declaration for the financial year 2022-23 to comply 
with PFRDA’s circular on Mandatory Concurrent audit of NAV declaration to be done by an 
external auditor. The Auditor clearly certifies on daily basis that the NAV computations 
have been carried out strictly in accordance with the Valuation Policies specified under 
the PFRDA (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Schemes under 
NPS) Guidelines issued in 2012 and subsequent amendments thereof.

Your Company had also appointed M/s. J Singh & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 110266W) as the Internal Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 
to conduct the Internal Audit of the Point of Presence operations of the Company in 
accordance with the scope prescribed in the Guidelines for Operational Activities to be 
followed by Point of Presence (POPs), POP-SP, Pop-SE & POP- Corporate.

Your Company had also appointed M/s. SMSR & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 110592W/W100094) for the financial year 2022-23 as the Concurrent 
Auditors of the Company to ascertain the External or Regulatory and the Internal 
Compliance. Concurrent Audit is essential for the control process, integral to the 
establishment of sound internal accounting functions and effective controls.
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Auditors Reports: -

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company in their Audit Report. Provision relating to Secretarial 
Audit by the Company Secretary in Practice is not applicable to the Company.

Particulars of Frauds reported by the Auditors: -

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported 
any fraud to the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company and the Central 
Government pursuant to the provisions of Sections 134 and 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Internal Financial Controls: -

The Internal Controls are adequate and commensurate with the size and scale of the 
operations of your Company. These controls operate through well documented standard 
operating procedures, policies, process and guidelines that are designed to provide 
reasonable assurance to the management of the reliability of financial information and 
compliance to Operating and Statutory/Regulatory requirements. The Internal Controls 
are routinely tested and certified by the Internal as well as the Statutory Auditors of 
your Company. Significant audit observations and the management actions thereon are 
reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit committee reviews 
the observations and assesses the adequacy of the actions proposed as well as monitors 
their implementation.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186: -

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans and guarantees which 
attract the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. For the particulars of 
investments made during the year, please refer Notes to Accounts.

Public Deposits: -

During the year under review, your Company had not accepted any deposits from the 
public under the provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Extract of Annual Return: -

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the extract 
of the Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 can 
be accessed at the website of the Company i.e. https://www.sbipensionfunds.com/
annual-reports/

Corporate Social Responsibility: -

During the financial year 2022-23 your Company has spent CSR obligation of  
Rs. 51,50,558.98 towards Project Sparsh Hospice – Centre for Palliative Care, in Hyderabad. 
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The Annual Report on CSR activity pursuant to section 135 read with rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as Annexure 
to this Directors Report. 

Material Orders Affecting the Company: -

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by any 
regulators, courts and tribunals that had impacted the going concern status and Company’s 
operations in future.

Material changes and commitments, if any: -

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements 
of the Company relate and the date of this report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo: - 

The primary objective of the Company is to carry on the business of Funds Management 
& POP Business. Disclosures pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, are not applicable to your Company during the 
year under review.

Particulars of Contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013: -

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the year under 
review with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 
basis. Particulars of transactions with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 have been given in Annexure 1.

Statutory Information: -

a.	 The provisions relating to constituting Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 
to your Company.

b.	 The provisions relating to establishment of Vigil Mechanism pursuant to Section 177 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules 2014 is not applicable to your Company.

c.	 The provisions relating to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)  
Rules, 2014 is not applicable to your Company.

d.	 The provisions relating to maintaining cost records pursuant to Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 
is not applicable to your Company.
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e.	 The provisions relating to annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, 
its Committees and of individual directors pursuant to Section 134 (3) (p) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 
to your Company.

f.	 The provisions relating to transfer(s) to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 is not applicable to your 
Company.

g.	 There have been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: -

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
the Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) are covered under this policy. The aim is to provide safe and conducive work 
environment for the women employees to enable them to work without fear, prejudice, 
gender bias and sexual harassment. 

No Complaint of Sexual Harassment has been received during the year under review.

Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI

Your Company is in Compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).
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also place on record their sincere thanks to State Bank of India, Sponsor Company for 
their wholehearted and continued support as a Sponsor Company. The Directors also 
take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation of the sincere efforts put in 
by the employees of the Company and their commendable teamwork and enthusiasm. 
The Directors look forward to the continued support of shareholders & employees in 
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For and on behalf of the Board
						             Sd/-			                Sd/-
Place : Mumbai        		       Anthony Rodrigues 		  Saurabh Chandra
Date :	20th July, 2023	 (Managing Director & CEO)   (Independent Director)
					            (DIN: 09217788)		  DIN: 02726077)



27SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

                            

     Annexure 1                   

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts/ Arrangements entered into by the 
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b)	 Nature of Contracts/Arrangements/ Transactions

(c)	 Duration of the Contracts/Arrangements/ Transactions

(d)	Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any

(e)	Justification for entering into such Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions

(f)	Date(s) of approval by the Board

(g)	Amount paid as advances, if any

(h)	Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required 
under first proviso to Section 188
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2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
No.

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 

relationship

Nature of 
Contracts/ Ar-
rangements/ 
Transactions

Duration of 
the Contracts/ 
Arrangements/ 

Transactions

Date(s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 

transactions includ-
ing the value, if any

Amount 
paid as 
advanc-

es, if 
any

1 State Bank 
o f  I n d i a 
-  Ho ld ing 
Company

Expenses (Lease 
Agreement)

36 months  
(01.08.2019 

to 31.07.2022 
extended upto 

31.12.2022)

Since 
this RPT 
is in the 
ordinary 

course of 
business 

and is 
at arm’s 

length 
basis, ap-
proval of 

the Board 
is not ap-
plicable.

Rs. 3,54,200/-plus 
taxes per month 
from 01.04.2022 to 
31.12.2022 

No

2 Reimbursement of 
expenses towards 
deputation of 
employees

Ongoing Rs. 3,50,28,313/- 
(Including GST)

No

3 SBI General 
Insurance

Insurance of Fixed 
Assets

Annually Rs. 63,559/- No

4 SBI General 
Insurance

Mediclaim Insur-
ance for Market 
Recruits

Annually Rs. 2,61,093/- No

5. SBI Life In-
surance

Term insurance for 
all he employees

Annually Rs. 2,52,157/- No

6 State Bank 
of India

I n v e s t m e n t  i n 
F ixed Depos i t s 
during the year

Ongoing Rs.115,34,41,849/ No

7 State Bank 
of India

Interest on
 Fixed Deposits 
earned for the year

Ongoing Rs. 4,91,66,371/- No

8 SBI Founda-
tion

CSR Donation Ongoing Rs. 51,50,559/- No

9 SBI Life In-
surance

Gratuity policy for 
Market recruits

Annual Rs. 23,66,850/- No

10 State Bank 
of India

Royalty payment 
for using Logo

Annual Rs. 1,03,95,388/- No

    For and on behalf of the Board

										                 Sd/-
Place : Mumbai        			   Anthony Rodrigues 	 Saurabh Chandra
Date :	20th July, 2023	 (Managing Director & CEO)   (Independent Director)
					            (DIN: 09217788)		  DIN: 02726077)
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The Company has constituted a Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Com-
panies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 and amendments made thereto. Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Company also formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which 
is available on website of the Company at https://www.sbipensionfunds.com/ This 
Annual Report on CSR activities as required under the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure to the Board’s Report.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

	

S. No.
Name of Director Designation / 

Nature of Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of meet-
ings of CSR Com-
mittee attended 
during the year

1.
Shri Saurabh Chandra, Chairman, 
Independent Director

2 2

2.
Shri Raj Vikash Verma, Member, 
Nominee Director

2 2

3.
Prof Gitika Kapoor, Member, Inde-
pendent Director

2 1*

4.
Shri Mohan Harshey, Member, In-
dependent Director

2 0**

5.
Shri Anthony Rodrigues, Member, 
Managing Director & CEO

2 2

Note: 
1.	 CSR Committee Meeting during FY 2022-23 was held on 14th July, 2022 and 18th October, 2022

2.	 * Tenure of Prof Gitika Kapoor as Independent Director on the Board of Company completed on 24th December, 

2022, accordingly, she attended only 1 CSR Committee Meeting which was held during her tenure for F.Y. 2022-23

3.	 ** Shri Mohan Harshey was appointed on Board of Company as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 19th January, 

2023 and was inducted as Member of CSR Committee in the same Meeting. No CSR Committee Meeting was held 

after his appointment.

3.	 Web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects ap-
proved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https://www.
sbipensionfunds.com/

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR 
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: N.A.
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a.
Average net profit of the company as per sub-section 
(5) of section 135.

25,75,27,948.99

b.
Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per sub-section (5) of section 135.

51,50,558.98

c.
Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years.

Nil

d.
Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, 
if any.

Nil

e.
Total CSR obligation for the financial year  
[(b)+(c)-(d)].

51,50,558.98

6 .       
a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project 

and other than Ongoing Project).
51,50,558.98

b. Amount spent in Administrative overheads.
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Nil
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 51,50,558.98
e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: Nil

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount 

spent for 
the Financial 
year. (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 
as per sub¬section (6) of 
section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to sub-section (5) of 

section 135.
Amount. Date of 

Transfer
Name of the 

Fund
Amount Date of 

Transfer
51,50,558.98 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

 
f. Excess amount for set-off, if any: Nil

 
S. 

No.
Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(1) (2) (3)

(i)
Two percent of average net profit of the company 
as per sub-section (5) of section 135

51,50,558.98

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 51,50,558.98
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv)
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or pro-
grammes or activities of the previous Financial 
Years, if any

Nil

(v)
Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial 
Years [(iii)-(iv)]

Nil
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7 . Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 
Financial years: Nil

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S . 
No.

Preced-
ing Fi-
nancial 
year(s)

Amount 
Trans-
ferred 
to un-
spent 
CSR 

Account 
under 

sub-sec-
tion (6) 
of sec-

tion 135 
(in Rs.)

Balance 
Amount 
in Un-
spent 
CSR 

Account 
under 
sub¬-

section 
(6) of 

section 
135 (in 

Rs.)

Amount 
Spent in 
the Fi-
nancial 
Year (in 

Rs)

Amount trans-
ferred to a Fund 
as specified un-
der Schedule 
VII as per sec-
ond proviso to 
sub-section (5) 

of section 135, if 
any

Amount 
remain-

ing 
to be 
spent 
in suc-
ceeding 
Finan-

cial 
Years 
(in Rs)

Defi-
ciency, 
if any

Amount 
(in Rs.)

Date of 
Transfer

1. N.A.
2.
3.

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: N.A.

For SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LIMITED
Sd/-
Anthony Rodrigues
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 09217788)

Dated: 20.07.2023
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	 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OPINION
1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of SBI 

Pension Funds Private Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit 
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
2.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder; 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 
THEREON

3.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information, comprising of the information included in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis, Directors’ Report including Annexures to Directors’ Report, Corporate 
Governance and such other disclosures related Information, excluding the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements and auditors report thereon (‘Other Information’). The 
other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditors’ report. Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.
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	 In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information when it becomes available and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially in consistent with 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

	 When we read the other Information and if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charges 
with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to 
other Information’.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under prescribed Section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they 



34SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among othermatters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

•	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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RREPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

5.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub‐ section (11) of section 143 of the 
Act, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order.

6.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a. 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b. 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

	 c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

	 d. 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with 
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 e. 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms 
of section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in Annexure “B”.

	 g.	 In terms of the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act, as per the information 
and explanations given, we report that the managerial remuneration paid by 
the Company to its Directors is in accordance with provisions of Section 197 of 
the Act.

	 h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, we report as under:

		  (i)	 The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 
which would impact its financial position;

		  (ii)	 The Company did not have any long‐term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

		  (iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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i.	 As required by section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the directions issued 
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the action taken thereon and its 
impact on the accounts and financial statements of the company, we report as under:

Remark

I. Whether the company has system in 
place to process all the accounting 
transactions through IT system? If 
yes, the implications of processing 
of accounting transactions outside 
IT system on the integrity of the 
accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes.
If accounting process is outside, 

IT system, integrity and reliability
of accounting system would 

be jeopardized since there is 
no maker / checker concept in 

manual accounting.

II. Whether there is any restructuring of 
an existing loan or cases of waiver/
write off debts /loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the company due 
to the company’s inability to repay 
the loan? If yes, the financial impact 
may be stated. Whether such cases 
are properly accounted for? (In case, 
lender is a government company, then
its direction is also applicable for 
statutory auditor of lender company)

N.A.

III. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific 
s chemes  f rom cent ra l/S ta te 
Government or its agencies were 
properly accounted for/utilized as 
per its term and conditions? List the 
cases of deviation.

N.A.

For TALATI & CO.
Chartered Accountants FRN: 110757W

Sd/-

[ Jay M. Doshi ]
Partner

[M.No : 138134 ]
Place: Mumbai			   UDIN : 23138134BGXFBP8528
Date : 26th April, 2023
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ANNEXURE “A”: THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LIMITED
[Referred to in paragraph (5) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date]

i.	 a. 	 (A) 	The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of its property & Plant and equipment.

		  (B)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of its intangible assets.

	 b.	 The property & Plant & equipment of the company have been physically verified 
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the 
book records and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the 
frequency of physical verification is reasonable.

	 c.	  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no immovable property 
in the name of the company hence reporting requirements in said clause are 
not applicable.

	 d.	 Company has not revalued its property, Plant and machinery (Including right of 
use assets) or intangible assets during the year hence reporting requirement in 
said clause is not applicable.

	 e.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, none of the proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 
hence not applicable.

ii.	 The Company is a pension fund management Company and does not have any 
inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) & (b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

iii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any guarantee, loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, investments or provided any guarantees or securities covered 
under sections 185 and 186 of the Act and in respect of investments made by the 
company, provisions of section 186 has been complied with.
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v.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76, or any other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, the provision of 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. 	The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records 
under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by 
the Company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

vii.	a.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books 
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income‐tax, goods 
and service tax (GST), cess and other material statutory dues have generally been 
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. According 
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of income tax, goods and service tax (GST), cess and other material 
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

	 b.   	According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not 
have any dues on account of income tax & goods and service tax (GST) which 
have not been deposited on account of dispute.

	
viii.	During the year no Income tax assessment has been carried out hence reporting 

requirements in said clause are not applicable.

ix.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has no loans or other borrowings during the financial year under audit 
therefore default on its repayment does not arise. Hence reporting requirements 
in said clause are not applicable.

x.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has neither raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer nor made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures hence reporting requirements in said clause are not 
applicable. 

xi.	 During our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the explanation and information given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit.
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xii.	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable.

xiii.	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, as required 
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records, we noticed that the provisions of internal audit are not 
applicable to the company. 

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records, during the year the Company has not entered into any 
non‐cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the 
provision of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi.	The Company is a pension fund management company and thus is not required to be 
registered under Section 45‐IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 hence reporting 
requirements in said clause are not applicable.

xvii.The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and not in the 
immediately preceding financial year hence said clause is not applicable.

xviii.This is being a subsidiary company of SBI group, appointment of Statutory auditor 
is carried out by C & AG through empanelment during the year there has been no 
resignation from statutory auditor. 

xix.	According to the information and explanations given to us & on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, we 
are of the opinion that there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report, that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date.

xx.	Company is covered under provisions of section 135 (Corporate Social responsibility) 
of the companies act 2013 and it has spent the amount as required under the said 
provision before the year end. There was no unspent amount at the year end.
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xxi.	We are the statutory auditor (appointed by C & AG through empanelment) of one 
of the subsidiary companies viz. SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LIMITED of SBI group, 
have no qualifications & adverse remarks in our audit report. A consolidated financial 
statement is certified by another auditor hence we are unable to comment on the 
same.

							      For TALATI & CO.
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 110757W

Sd/-
[ Jay M. Doshi ]

Partner
[M.No : 138134 ]

Place: Mumbai	 UDIN :  23138134BGXFBP8528
Date : 26th April, 2023

ANNEXURE “B” : THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LIMITED
[Referred to in paragraph (6 (f)) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date]

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS under Clause (i) of Sub‐section 3 of 
Section 143 of (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SBI Pension 
Funds Private Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that:
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements.

IINHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO 
FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
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financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion considering the nature and size of the operations, the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For TALATI & CO.
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 110757W

 Sd/-
[ Jay M. Doshi ]

Partner
[M.No : 138134 ]

Place: Mumbai	 UDIN :  23138134BGXFBP8528
Date : 26th April, 2023
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of the accounts of SBt Pension Funds Private Limited for 

the year ended 31st March, 2023 in accordance with the directions issued by the C&AG 

of lndia under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 & certify that we havecomplied 

with all the directions issued to us.

For TALATI & CO. 
 							          Chartered Accountants 

   FRN: 110757W 
 							          

   Sd/-
   Jay M. Doshi

Partner
Membership No. 138134

UDIN: 23138134BGXFBP8528
Place: Mumbai
Date: 26th April, 2023
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TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that, the Net worth Statement of M/S SBI PENSTON FUNDS PR|VATE 
LIMITED having CIN: U65020MH2007GO1L76787, registered address at SBI Pension Funds 
(P) Limited, 1904, 19th Floor, B-Wing, Parinee Crescenzo, G block, plot No C - 38/39, 
BKC, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra, lndia as on 31”’t March,2023, as 
per below mentioned statement of computation of net worth is Rs. 1,49,59,57,1281- 
(Rupees One Hundred and Forty-Nine Crores Fifty Nine Lakhs Fifty Seven Thousand 
One Hundred & Twenty Eight only). 

Computation Of Net worth as on 3U03l2023
Particulars Amount (in  `) Amount (in  `)

Share Capital 30,00,00,000/-

Reserves & Surplus 1,19,59,57 ,1291-

NET ASSETS / NETWORTH -------------------> 1,49,59,57,129 /-

The above statement is prepared on specific request of client and based on the 
records and documents produced before us for verification.

For TALATI & CO. 
 							          Chartered Accountants 

   FRN: 110757W 
 							          

   Sd/-
   Jay M. Doshi

Partner
Membership No. 138134

UDIN: 23138134BGXFBP8528
Place: Mumbai
Date: 26th April, 2023
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Place : Mumbai
Date : 27/07/2023

Sd/-
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No

 As at March 31, 
2023 

 As at March 31, 
2022 

ASSETS

1 Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2        1,531.98 575.14 

(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 3          11,717.37  7,959.75 

(c) Derivative financial instruments               -                 -   

(d) Receivables

(I) Trade Receivables 4   1,268.02   1,111.47 

(II) Other Receivables                 -                -   

(e) Loans             -    -   

(f) Investments 5          0.10            0.10 

(g) Other Financial assets 6       742.86    232.21 

 15,260.31      9,878.67 

2 Non-financial Assets

(a) Inventories               -      -   

(b) Current tax Assets (Net) 7            10.46       87.15 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8            3.13 

(d) Investment Property                 -            -   

(e) Biological assets other than bearer plants             -                           -   

(f) Property, Plant and Equipments 9    1,421.98        68.21 

(g) Capital Work-in-Progress                       -                    -   

(h) Intangible assets under development                          -                            -   

(i) Goodwill                 -                  -   

(j) Other Intangible assets 9                11.73        20.78 

(k) Other non-financial assets 10               95.29              65.85 

       1,542.58        241.99 

Total Assets      16,802.89         10,120.66 
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For Talati & Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants				    SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LTD.
Firm Regn No: 110757W
UDIN - 22138134AHLZYG8157
Sd/-
CA Jay Doshi
Partner
Membership No: 138134
Place : Mumbai, 
Date : 26th April 2023

Sd/-
Raj Ashok Manek

Company Secretary
PAN: CAGPM1041P

Sd/-
Venkata Ratnam V.

Chief Financial Officer
PAN- ABBPV1259J

	  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Swaminathan Janakiraman	 Anthony Rodrigues
             Chairman	 Managing Director & CEO
          DIN: 08516241	 DIN: 9217788

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

1 Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative financial instruments         -                    -   

(b) Payables

(I) Trade Payables                -                  -   

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise 
and small enterprises        -                 -   

(ii) total outstanding dues to creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises        -                      -   

(II) Other Payables 11                  41.08                  23.97 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprise 
and small enterprises                     -                      -   

(ii) total outstanding dues to creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises                 -                      -   

(c) Debt Securities             -                       -   

(d) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)                         -                      -   

(e) Deposits      -                  -   

(f) Subordinated Liabilities -                       -   

(g) Other financial liabilities 12              1,359.99                 36.46 

  1,401.06                60.43 

2 Non-financial Liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)                -                    -   

(b) Provisions 13               241.57      269.49 

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 8            -                 1.04 

(d) Other non-financial liabilities 14               200.69                 180.69 

      442.26    451.22 

3 EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 15    3,000.00  3,000.00 

(b) Other Equity 16            11,959.57       6,609.01 

          14,959.57             9,609.01 

Total Liabilities and Equity           16,802.89      10,120.66 

Summary of significant accounting policies	

The accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements	
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Ended March 31,2023
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No

 For the 
Quarter Ending 

March 2023 

 For the 
Quarter Ending 

March 2022 

 For the Year 
Ending March 

2023 

 For the Year 
Ending March 

2022 
I Revenue from Operations

(i) Interest Income              -   
(ii) Dividend Income               -   
(iii) Fee and commission income 17        3,386.02        2,971.63      13,008.39      11,452.03 
(iv) Net gain on fair value changes     -   

I Total Revenue From Operations      3,386.02   2,971.63    13,008.39      1,452.03 
II Other Income 18                144.11                82.52     498.20               196.10 
III Profit on Sale of investment      -   
IV Total Income (I+II+III)      3,530.13     3,054.16    13,506.59   11,648.13 
V Expenses
(i) Finance Costs      82.00        0.61            96.33              2.45 
(ii) Net loss on fair value changes                   -   
(iii) Impairment of financial instruments                 -   
(iv) Employee benefit Expenses 19        227.69        230.31        811.34           607.91 
(v) Depreciation and amortisation 9     72.45            20.12           139.86       78.98 
(vi) Other Expenses 20       1,446.47      1,098.50       5,264.44        4,005.09 
V Total Expenses 1,828.61     1,349.54     6,311.97      4,694.43 
VI Profit before exceptional items and tax (IV-V)       1,701.52      1,704.62       7,194.62     6,953.70 
VII Exception items                   -   
VIII Profit before tax (VI-VII)     1,701.52      1,704.62     7,194.62    6,953.70 
IX Tax Expense

(1) Current tax    437.90          439.30        1,843.12        1,753.56 
(2) Deferred tax 8        1.90  -0.71        -4.16        -2.39 
(3) Tax adjustment for earlier years            -              -            5.11         4.84 

IX Net Tax Expense 439.80 438.58 1,844.06 1,756.01 
X Profit for the Period 1,261.72     1,266.03     5,350.56  5,197.69 

(Comprising Profit/(loss) and Other 
Coprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period)

XIII Earnings per equity share 21
Equity Share of par value ` 10/- each
(1) Basic      4.21        4.22       17.84    17.33 
(2) Diluted           4.21         4.22      17.84      17.33 

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements               1

For Talati & Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants				    SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LTD.
Firm Regn No: 110757W
UDIN - 22138134AHLZYG8157
Sd/-
CA Jay Doshi
Partner
Membership No: 138134
Place : Mumbai, 
Date : 26th April 2023

Sd/-
Raj Ashok Manek

Company Secretary
PAN: CAGPM1041P

Sd/-
Venkata Ratnam V.

Chief Financial Officer
PAN- ABBPV1259J

	  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Swaminathan Janakiraman	 Anthony Rodrigues
             Chairman	 Managing Director & CEO
          DIN: 08516241	 DIN: 9217788
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Cash flow statement for the Year Ending March 31, 2023
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year Ending 
March 2022 

1. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax  1,701.52      1,704.62     7,194.62    6,953.70 
Adjustments for
Depreciation 72.45  20.12 139.86    78.98 
Other Income      -144.11         -82.52      -498.20      -194.34 
Asset Written off    0.10          20.71             0.10 
Interest on Lease Liability     82.00      0.61  96.33  2.45 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
and adjustments for Interest paid, Interest 
received and dividend received

1,711.86   1,642.92  6,953.32  6,840.89 

Adjustment for
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable  -33.61    -27.05  -156.54  -525.52 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets     -132.70      1.57     -432.54        -85.72 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets        51.55     -90.67        -29.44    5.42 
Increase/(Decrease) in  Other Payables       -8.57            2.08       27.11  -5.73 
Increase/(Decrease) in  Other Financial Liabilities            5.83 -69.20       66.04          18.47 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 37.72 192.25     -37.92       183.87 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities 42.64            3.23          18.58        152.91 
Cash used in operations   1,674.72 1,655.14  6,408.61   6,584.58 
Taxes paid         443.01        439.30  1,848.23    1,758.52 
Net cash used in Operating Activities  1,231.71    1,215.84    4,560.39    4,826.06 
2. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received      144.11 82.52  498.20 194.34 
Increase/Decrease in Fixed Deposits -1,275.00   -2,307.69  -3,757.61  -4,635.36 
Purchase of Tangible & Intangible Assets      -86.01       -0.02  -207.26       -16.59 
Sale of Tangible & Intangible Assets               -     0.01           -          0.01 
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES -1,216.90 -2,225.17 -3,466.67 -4,457.61 
3. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal Portion of Rental Payments -84.74 -10.63 -136.88 -42.50 
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  -84.74  -10.63     -136.88         -42.50 
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS -69.93 -1,019.95 956.84 325.95

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF 
THE PERIOD 1,601.90 1,595.09 575.14 249.19

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 1,531.98 575.13 1,531.98 575.13

For Talati & Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants				    SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LTD.
Firm Regn No: 110757W
UDIN - 22138134AHLZYG8157
Sd/-
CA Jay Doshi
Partner
Membership No: 138134
Place : Mumbai, 
Date : 26th April 2023

Sd/-
Raj Ashok Manek

Company Secretary
PAN: CAGPM1041P

Sd/-
Venkata Ratnam V.

Chief Financial Officer
PAN- ABBPV1259J

	  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Swaminathan Janakiraman	 Anthony Rodrigues
             Chairman	 Managing Director & CEO
          DIN: 08516241	 DIN: 9217788



50SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2023
Amount in Lakhs

Statement of Changes in Equity 

A. Equity Share Capital
1 Current reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the current 
reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated 
balance at the 
beginning of 
the current 
reporting  

period

Changes 
in equity 

share capital 
during the 

current year

Balance at 
the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period

              3,000.00        -          3,000.00   -          3,000.00 
2 Previous reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the current 
reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors

Restated 
balance at the 
beginning of 
the current 

reporting period

Changes 
in equity 

share capital 
during the 

current year

Balance at 
the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period
        3,000.00     -       3,000.00          -      3,000.00 

B Other Equity
1 Current reporting period

Reserves and Surplus Total
Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period   6,609    6,609 
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors       -         -   
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period         6,609    6,609 
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year         5,351            5,351 
Dividends                      -              -   
Transfer to retained earnings          5,351  5,351 
Any other change (to be specified)                        -             -   
Balance at the end of the current reporting period      11,960  11,960 

2 Previous reporting period
Reserves and Surplus Total

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period                     1,411 1,411 
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors                       -            -   
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period                         1,411           1,411 
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year                    5,198            5,198 
Dividends                 -                -   
Transfer to retained earnings                       5,198            5,198 
Any other change (to be specified)     -                     -   
Balance at the end of the current reporting period                        6,609        6,609 

(Refer Note 31 for detail disclosure)

For Talati & Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants				    SBI PENSION FUNDS PRIVATE LTD.
Firm Regn No: 110757W
UDIN - 22138134AHLZYG8157
Sd/-
CA Jay Doshi
Partner
Membership No: 138134
Place : Mumbai, 
Date : 26th April 2023

Sd/-
Raj Ashok Manek

Company Secretary
PAN: CAGPM1041P

Sd/-
Venkata Ratnam V.

Chief Financial Officer
PAN- ABBPV1259J

	  Sd/-	 Sd/-
Swaminathan Janakiraman	 Anthony Rodrigues
             Chairman	 Managing Director & CEO
          DIN: 08516241	 DIN: 9217788
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Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2023

Company’s Basic Information-
SBI Pension Funds Private Limited is a Private Limited company incorporated on 14th December 2007. It is 
classified as Union Government Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. SBI Pension 
Funds Private Limited’s Corporate Identification Number is (CIN) U66020MH2007GOI176787, its registration 
number is 176787 and its registered office address is 1904 19th Floor, B Wing Parinee Crescenzo, Bandra 
Kurla Complex, Bandra Mumbai 400051. The company acts as Pension Fund Manager of the corpus owned 
by NPS Trust and  also as Point of Presence (POP) under NPS Architecture.

Note 1: – Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Preparation of financial statements (Ind AS – 1)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards in India 
(“Ind AS”) notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from 
time to time) This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income and notes to accounts.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use.

b. Cash Flow Statement (Ind AS – 7)

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and deferrals or accruals of the past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing & financing activities of the company 
are segregated.

c. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks. The Company considers all 
highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

d. Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Ind AS – 8)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with “Ind AS” requires the management of the 
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of income and expense during the year. Examples of such estimates include provisions for 
doubtful receivables, provision for income taxes, the useful lives of depreciable fixed assets both tangible 
and intangible assets and provision for impairment, valuation of inventories, assessment of recoverable 
amounts of deferred tax assets, provision for sales returns, provision for obligations relating to employees, 
provisions against litigations and contingencies. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Actual results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the 
actual result and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialize.

Judgements:
Financial Statements are made with information about judgements made in applying accounting policies 
that have a most significant effect on the amount recognized in the Financial Statements.
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Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:
Financial Statements are made with information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have 
a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31st March 2023.

e. Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment (Ind AS – 16)
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes direct expenses as well as clearly identifiable indirect expenses 
incurred to bring the assets to their working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures 
related to an item of tangible asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits 
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Intangible Assets (Ind AS – 38)
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation/
depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use attributable to 
the intangible assets.

Accounting Of Lease (IND AS 116)
Company has identified the Lease arrangements which are to be classified as Right to Use. Short Term 
Lease Arrangements are not considered under this standard. 
As a result, Lease agreements having long term tenure are identified for IND AS 116 purpose and accordingly 
accounting treatment is being given.
Right to Use is created as Non-financial Asset at present value for all future Rental Payments.
Lease Liability is created for the amount equivalent to Right to Use.
Right to Use is amortised over the period of lease term and is charged to Profit and loss.
Interest is calculated on Lease Liability and same is charged to Profit and Loss as Finance Cost.

f. Depreciation and Amortization (Ind AS – 16)

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on the ‘Straight Line Method’ as per schedule II 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately 
charged. Individual low-cost assets (acquired for `. 5,000/- or less) are depreciated over a period of one 
year from the date of acquisition. 
The residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment where the estimated useful life as prescribed in the 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 was completed, the depreciation charged on such Property,

Sr.No. Particulars Useful Life
1 Plant & Machinery 15 Years
2 Furniture & Fixture 10 years
3 Office Equipment 5 Years
4 Electrical Installation 10 Years
5 Other (Computers)- End Users/ Servers 3/ 6 years
6 Intangible Assets 3 years

Intangibles
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line 
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use. 

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 
date.
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Intangibles under Development
Intangible assets which are not put to use but are under development stage, will be accounted as Intangibles 
under Development. 

g. Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Ind AS – 115)

i. Revenue from Operation 
Management fee is recognized at specific rates agreed with the relevant schemes, applied on daily net 
assets of each scheme, and is in conformity with the regulatory guidelines. 
Commission income from POP Business i.e Account opening fees and Contribution processing fees are 
recognised on the basis of contributions received from subscribers and generation of PRAN.
The Company presents revenues net of Goods and Service Tax in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Other Income 
Revenue is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. Interest 
on Fixed Deposits is recognized on accrual basis. Other income is recognized as and when it is received.

h. Investment Property (Ind AS – 40)

Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company’s business interests. Investments 
are either classified as current or long term based on Management’s intention. Current investments are 
carried at the lower of cost and fair value of each investment individually. Long term investments are 
carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any decline, other than temporary, in the carrying 
value of each investment.

i. Retirement Benefits (Ind AS – 19)
	
a. Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions for market recruits as required 
by the statute paid to Government Provident Fund are charged to profit and loss account. However, it also 
includes payment of provident fund of employees on deputation from State Bank of India, paid by state 
Bank of India, however same is reimbursed by the Company.

b. Liabilities on account of the provision of Gratuity, of officer on deputation from State Bank of India are 
made by State Bank of India, however same is reimbursed by the Company. Gratuity for Market recruits 
is covered by gratuity policy obtained.

c. Salary, allowances and other perquisites paid to the officers on deputation from State Bank of India 
(SBI) are reimbursed to SBI on actual basis. Additionally, 30% of officers’ salary towards Bank’s contribution 
to SBI Employees’ Provident Fund, SBI Employees’ Pension Fund and Employees’ Gratuity Fund are also 
reimbursed to SBI. 

j. Earnings per share (Ind AS – 33)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net 
profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings 
per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the 
proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value, which is the average market value 
of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of 
the period, unless issued at a later date. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are 
adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including 
for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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k Income Taxes (Ind AS – 12)

Income tax is accrued in the same period that the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is 
made for income tax annually, based on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and 
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to disallowances or other 
matters is probable. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise 
to future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax liability, is recognized as 
an asset in the Balance Sheet if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax after 
the tax holiday period and the resultant asset can be measured reliably. The Company offsets, on a year 
on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right and where it 
intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial 
statements are identified, and thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded for 
timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one accounting period and reverse in another, 
based on the tax effect of the aggregate amount of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on the 
accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period based on enacted or substantively 
enacted regulations. Deferred tax assets in situations where unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward 
business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. 
Deferred tax assets, other than in situations of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business loss, 
are recognized only if there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each 
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company 
has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

l. Impairment of Assets (Ind AS – 36)

The Management periodically assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication 
that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s net selling price and 
value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing 
use of the asset and its eventual disposal. 

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased 
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

m. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind AS – 37)

AA provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on 
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates Contingent Liabilities, if any, are 
disclosed in the Notes to Accounts. Provision is made in the accounts in respect of those contingencies 
which are likely to materialize into liabilities.
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A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obligation that can 
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the outflow of economic benefits required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made 
as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is also made when there is a possible obligation 
or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is 
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

n. Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet on trade date when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
and revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the 
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 
costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at 
FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for such 
difference as follows:

a) If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based 
on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

b) In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 
1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market 
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

o. Financial assets

Classification

On initial recognition, depending on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial asset is classified as measured at;

1)     Amortised cost;
2)     Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
3)     Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial asset is recognised on trade date initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction cost and income 
that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Cost equates the fair value on acquisition. 
Financial asset measured at amortised cost and financial asset measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are presented at gross carrying value in the Financial Statements. Unamortised 
transaction cost and unamortised income and impairment allowance on financial asset are shown separately 
under the heading “Other non-financial asset”, ‘‘Other non-financial liability” and “Provisions” respectively.
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Based on the assessment of the business models, the Company has identified the following three choices 
of classification of its financial assets:

a) Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual 
cash flows (“Asset held to collect contractual cash-flows”), and that have contractual cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are measured 
at amortised cost;

b) Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual 
cash flows and to sell the assets, (“Contractual cash flows of Asset collected through hold and sell model”) 
and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are measured at FVTOCI.
 
c) All other financial assets (e.g. managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and equity investments 
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial asset at amortised cost:

Amortised cost of financial asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair 
value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the 
financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Contractual cash flows that do not introduce 
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows on account of changes such as equity prices 
or commodity prices and are related to a basic lending arrangement, do give rise to SPPI. An originated 
or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in 
its legal form.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

After initial measurement, basis assessment of the business model as “Contractual cash flows of Asset 
collected through hold and sell model and SPPI”, such financial assets are classified to be measured at 
FVTOCI. Contractual cash flows that do introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash 
flows due to changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and are unrelated to a basic lending 
arrangement, do not give rise to SPPI.

The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The carrying value of the financial 
asset is fair valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over contractual tenure, basis the internal 
rate of return of a new similar asset originated in the month of reporting and such unrealised gain/loss 
is recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Where such a similar product is not originated in the 
month of reporting, the closest product origination is used as a proxy. Upon sale of the financial asset, 
actual the gain/ loss realised is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the unrealised/gain losses 
recorded in OCI are recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified 
as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset which otherwise meets the 
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as FVTPL.  However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or 
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).  Financial 
assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Reclassifications within classes of financial assets

A change in the business model would lead to a prospective re-classification of the financial asset and 
accordingly, the measurement principles applicable to the new classification will be applied. During the 
current financial and previous accounting years, there was no change in the business model under which 
the Company held financial assets and therefore, no reclassifications were made.

Modification and De-recognition of financial assets

Modification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial 
asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately 
or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise 
collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the 
borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of 
default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised 
terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes 
to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of 
cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness). Such accounts are classified as stage 3 immediately 
upon such modification in the terms of the contract.

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors 
that are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when:

1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

2) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

Financial liability, Equity and Compound Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange 
financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable 
to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and 
is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of 
its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled other 
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the 
Company’s own equity instruments.
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Classification

The Company classifies its financial liability as “Financial liability measured at amortised cost” except for 
those classified as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liability is recognised initially at cost  of  acquisition  net  of  transaction  costs  and incomes 
that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability. Cost equates the fair value on acquisition. 
The Company may irrevocably designate a financial liability that meet the amortised cost as measured 
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair 
value option).

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
 
Equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities.  Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments 
is an equity instrument.
No gain/loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation 
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

p. Segment Reporting

Identification of Segments Operating 

Segments are identified based on monitoring of operating results by the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM) separately for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and performance 
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with 
profit or loss of the Company. 

Operating Segment is identified based on the nature of products and services, the different risks and 
returns, and the internal business reporting system. 

Segment Policies 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Further, inter-segment 
revenue has been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between segments, which is 
primarily market based. Unallocated Corporate Items include general corporate income and expenses, 
which are not attributable to segments

q. Figures as on 31st March 2023 have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the 
figures as on 31st March 2022.
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NOTE "2" CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) Balances with banks (in the nature of cash and cash equivalents)    75.84    88.76 
(b) Bank deposits with maturity less than 3 months  1,456.13  486.38 
Total 1,531.98    575.14 

NOTE "3" OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS

PARTICULARS  As at March 
31, 2023 

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) Bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 
months       -    2,623.69 

(b) Bank deposits with maturity more than 12 months   11,717.37  5,336.07 
Total      11,717.37     7,959.75 

NOTE "4" TRADE RECEIVABLES

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
Receivables considered good - unsecured  1,268.02  1,111.47 
Less: Allowance for impairment loss       -      -   
Total    1,268.02     1,111.47 

Trade Receivables aging schedule

PARTICULARS Outstanding for following peri-
ods from due date of payment
Less than 6 

months
 Less than 6 

months 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good    1,268.02     1,111.47 
(For detailed schedule refer Note 32)

NOTE "5" INVESTMENTS

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

Carried at Cost
Equity Shares of SBI Foundation   0.10  0.10 

Total  0.10     0.10 

NOTE "6" OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
Other Receivables   13.78  0.20 
Security Deposits     126.79    22.87 
Interest accrued on Deposits (with maturity less than 12 months)   0.81    -   
Interest accrued on Deposits (with maturity more than 12 months)     577.81  209.14 
Grtuity Fund   23.67    -   
Total   742.86    232.21 

Amount in Lakhs



60SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

NOTE "7" CURRENT TAX ASSETS ( NET)

Security Deposits As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

Total
Income Tax ( AY 2023-24) 10.46    -   
Income Tax ( AY 2021-22)       -   87.15
Total 10.46 87.15

NOTE "8" INCOME TAXES
(a)  The income tax expense consist of the following

PARTICULARS As at March 
31, 2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
Current tax
Current tax expense for the period  1,838.64  1,753.68 
Current tax expense/(benefit) pertaining to prior years       -    4.84 

 1,838.64  1,758.52 
Deferred tax benefit
Origination and reversal of temporary differences    -4.16     -2.51 
Change in tax rates

   -4.16     -2.51 
Total income tax expense recognised in the Period    1,834.48     1,756.01 

(b) Deferred Tax Liability
The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period ended 31st March 2023 are 
as follows:

PARTICULARS Opening 
Balance

 Recognized/ 
(Reversed) 

through profit 
and loss 

 Closing 
Balance 

Deferred Tax Assets:-
(a) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment      -   
(b) Unabsorbed lossed to be carried forward                 -       -         -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities:-
(a) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment               1.03        -4.16      -3.13 

Net Deferred Tax Liability                1.03             -4.16         -3.13 

Gross Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are as follows
PARTICULARS As at March 

31, 2023
 As at March 

31, 2022 
Deferred Tax Assets:-
(a) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment   3.13 
(b) Unabsorbed lossed to be carried forward         -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities:-
(a) Depreciation on property, plant & equipment    0.91 
Net Deferred Tax Asset   3.13          0.91 

Amount in Lakhs
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NOTE "10" OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
Prepaid Expenses   91.45    64.00 
Unamortized interest on Security Deposits    3.84      1.85 

    -   
Total      95.29   65.85 

NOTE "11" OTHER PAYABLES

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) Provision for Expenses   31.98    22.95 
(b) Contribution Payable    8.32      1.02 
( C)Other Payables    0.77     -   
Total      41.08   23.97 

NOTE "12" OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) Payables related to Suppliers   93.67    27.62 
(b) Liabilty for Lease Payments      1,266.31      8.83 
(c)  Advance Contribution Fee from POP     -        0.02 

    -   
Total    1,359.99   36.46 
Payables related to Suppliers aging schedule

Particulars
Outstanding for following 
periods from due date of 

payment
Less than 1 

year
 Less than 1 

year 
(i) MSME
(ii) Others      93.67   27.62 

NOTE "13" PROVISIONS

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) Provision for Gratuity   23.67      21.2 
(b) Provisions for Salary and Bonus     207.90    159.2 
(C) Provision for Leave Encashment   10.00      2.62 
(d) Provision for Income Tax ( Net) ( AY 2022-23)     -      86.44 
Total   241.57   269.5 

Amount in Lakhs



63SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

NOTE "14" OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

At Amortised Cost
(a) GST Payable     174.47      171.19 
(b) TDS Payable   24.95      9.47 
(c) Other Dues Payable    1.27      0.03 
Total   200.69    180.69 

NOTE "15" SHARE CAPITAL

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 
2023

 As at March 
31, 2022 

Authorised
10,00,00,000 equity shares of ` 10/- each     10,000      10,000 
Total   10,000    10,000 
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
3,00,00,000 equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up   3,000    3,000 
Total      3,000   3,000 

15.1 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding

PARTICULARS No of Shares  Amount in 
Lakhs 

Equity Shares
Opening Balance as on April 01, 2022   3,00,00,000.00    3,000 
Add/Less:  During the Period     -       -   
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2023 3,00,00,000.00   3,000 

15.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares			 
(i) 	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each holder 

of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in 
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.			 

			 
(ii)	 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 

remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will 
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.			 

			 
15.3 Details of shareholders/Promoters  in the company

 As at March 31, 2023 
 % of 

Change 
during 

the year 
 As at March 31, 2022 

% of 
Change 
during 

the year

Sr 
No Promotor Name  No. of Shares 

 % of Toal 
Share 

Capital 
 No. of Shares 

 % of Toal 
Share 

Capital 
1 State Bank of India Ltd.  1,79,99,980   60  NIL 1,79,99,980   60.00 NIL
2 SBI Funds Management Ltd.    60,00,000   20  NIL    60,00,000   20.00 NIL
3 SBI Capital Markets Ltd.    60,00,000   20  NIL    60,00,000   20.00 NIL
4 Kalyan Kishore *    10      100   100.00     -        -   
5 Mihir Mishra *    10      100   100.00     -        -   
6 Dinesh Kumar Khara *     -      -       10   0.00 100
7 Devendra Kumar *     -      -       10   0.00 100

3,00,00,000      100 3,00,00,000    100.00 

Amount in Lakhs



64SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

NOTE "16" OTHER EQUITY
PARTICULARS  As at March 

31, 2023 
 As at March 

31, 2022 
(a) Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss 6,609.01    1,411.32
Add:- Addition during the Year      5,350.56     5,197.69 
Total  11,959.57    6,609.01 

NOTE "17" FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
PARTICULARS  For the 

Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

(a) Management Fees   3,378.98   2,964.45  12,980.39   11,408.81 
(b) Contribution Fee from POP Business  7.04  7.18        28.00  43.22 

Total   3,386.02   2,971.63  13,008.39  11,452.03 

NOTE "18" OTHER INCOME
PARTICULARS  For the 

Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

(a) Interest Income      144.11        80.63      498.20       194.34 
(b) Other Income   -    1.89  0.00   1.76 

Total     144.11       82.52    498.20     196.10 

NOTE "19" EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
PARTICULARS  For the 

Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

(a) Salaries & Wages      187.21      200.07      686.57       521.43 
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds  10.16  6.96        41.16  27.41 
(c) Leave Encashment & Gratuity  13.69  8.41        16.15   9.10 
(d) Staff welfare Expenses  4.85  2.44        20.89  12.64 
(e) Reimbursment of Expenses   -    0.60  0.41   1.16 
(g) Lease accomodation  11.78        11.82        46.16  36.17 
Total     227.69    230.31    811.34     607.91 

Amount in Lakhs
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19.1 Salaries & wages includes salaries & wages paid to employees of State Bank of India on 
deputation as per effective circular no. CDO/ PRHRD-CM/70/2011-12 and CDO/P & HRD -CM/88/2012-
13 dated 04.10.2011 & 15.03.13 respectively of Rs. 3,06,50,438/-  (Previous Year : Rs. 3,24,99,689/- )
19.2  Contribution to provident and other funds also include provident and other funds payment to 
State Bank of India on salaries & wages paid for the employees on deputation of Rs. 37,30,303/- 
(Previous Year: Rs 27,40,880/-)
NOTE "20" OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
PARTICULARS  For the 

Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

Annual Fee – PFRDA   1,212.74   1,010.74   4,480.62    3,701.97 
Brokerage (NPS)  10.21  2.60        13.20   4.29 
Brokerage and Commission  0.02  0.01  0.66  14.05 
Directors Sitting Fees  6.20  5.10        25.40  16.50 
Electricity Expenses  5.29  1.71        10.39   6.59 
I T Expenses  80.78        31.56      273.22       101.59 
Insurance Charges  1.92  0.45  5.74   1.88 
Legal and Professional fees  3.72        20.99        79.51  45.36 
Rent, Rates & Taxes  0.82  1.01  3.45   3.64 
Repairs & Maintenance  0.04  0.88  4.91   3.60 
Royalties  25.99  6.89      103.95   6.89 
Traveling and Conveyance  2.71  0.87        12.64  10.87 
Miscellanrous Expenses  77.19        15.22      100.67  73.36 
POP Expenses  0.73  0.29  0.78   0.44 
Reversal on Interest Income   -    -    -    12.99 
Amortization of Security Deposits  5.81  -    6.81   0.32 
Compensation Paid  6.52  -          28.38   -   
License Fee  5.57  -          41.14   -   
Assets writen off #   -    -          20.71   -   
CSR Donation   -    -          51.51   -   
Total   1,446.28   1,098.31   5,263.69  4,004.34 

*Compensation Paid to  represents compensation paid for wrong NAV declared on 5 days in the month 
of April 2022. Amount represents compensation of higher redemption paid to subscribers due to 
declaration of higher NAV. 
# Assets from Old office premises, which have become obselete, are written off as we have shifted to 
new office premises in the month of December 2022

Note 20.1 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
PARTICULARS  For the 

Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

For Statutory Audit  0.19  0.19  0.75   0.75 
Total   0.19   0.19   0.75  0.75 
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Note 21. Earnings per Share  For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Quarter 
Ending 
March 
2022 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2023 

 For the 
Year 

Ending 
March 
2022 

Profit available for distribution to equity share 
holders

 1,262        1,266        5,351  5,198 

Weighted average no of equity shares   300   300   300  300 
Basic Earnings per share  4.21  4.22        17.84  17.33 
Diluted Earnings per share  4.21  4.22        17.84  17.33 

Note  22 Contingent liabilities and commitments  As at March 
31, 2023 

 As at March 
31, 2022 

  Bank Guarantees  25.00    40.00 

 25.00   40.00 
Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 20,00,000/- favoring PFRDA for the period of 5 Years against pledge 
of Fixed deposit of Rs.30,00,000/- and Rs. 5,00,000/- favouring MMRDA against pledge of Fixed Deposit 
of Rs. 6,00,000/-

23. Capital commitments
Capital Committement as on 31.03.2023 is Rs. 37.69 Lakhs is  toawrds work awareded for improvements 
in leases premises to the extent of uncertified portion from total cost awareded. (Previous Year NIL)

24: Operating Segements
The Management has identified two operating segments I,e Pension Fund Management (PFM) and Point of 
Presence (PoP).

For the Year ended 31st Marc h 2023 For the Year ended 31st Marc h 2022

Pension 
Fund 

Manage-
ment

Point of 
Presence

Other Un-
allocable 
Expenses

Total

Pension 
Fund 

Manage-
ment

Point of 
Presence

Other 
Unallo-
cable 

Expens-
es

Total

Segment Revenue  12,980.39     28.00      498.20  13,506.59  11,408.82    43.22  196.10  11,648.13 
Segment Result 
(before Tax)  6,826.09   18.94      349.58 7,194.62 6,833.67    12.91  107.13 6,953.70 

Segment Assets  15,342.82   12.78   1,447.29  16,802.89 9,869.14    75.39  176.13  10,120.66 
Segment Liabilities     568.68   8.32  1,266 1,843.32   500.74      1.04       9.87 511.65 
Depreciation and 
Amortization     131.09   8.76     -    139.86   68.98    10.00   -     78.98 

25: Leases Amount in Lakhs
The company has identified following Lease Agreement for Adoption of IND AS 116
Lease Agreement with State Bank of India for Office Premises.  The Tenure of the agreement is valid 
till 01.06.2027.
Transition Method applied by the company - Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially 
applying the standard on application date i.e. 1 April 2019.

Amount in Lakhs
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Right to Use is disclosed along with Property Plant and Equipement under Non 
Financial assets.

1,201.23 

Right to Use is amortized over the period of Lease and Same is charged to Profit and 
Loss as Depreciation.

104.81 

Lease Libilty for amount equals to Right to Use being further adjusted by Actual Rent 
Paid and Interest Comonent.

1,266.31 

Interest on Lease Liabilty at Notinal Rate of Return 82.00

26. Corporate Social Responsibilty ( CSR) Amount in Rs.

a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year      51.51 
b) Amount of expenditure incurred     51.51 
c) Shortfall at the end of the year NIL
d) Total of previous years shortfall NIL
e) Reasons for shortfall NA
f) Nature of CSR activities :-

Contribution to SBI Foundation Rs. 51,50,559/-

g) Details of related party transaction SBI Foundation 
Rs.51.51 Lakhs

h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into 
a contractual obligation - NIL

	
28. Related Party Disclosures

Key Managerial Person (KMP)
Shri. Anthony Rodrigues, Managing Director & CEO
Shri Tejas Mehta, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer till 30.06.2022
Smt Jyoti Kalloli, Company Secretory and Compliance Officer till 25.04.2023
Shr. Raj Ashok Manek w.e.f 26.04.2023
Shri. Venkata Ratnam V., Chief Financial Officer

Related Parties
State Bank of India- Holding Company
SBI Foundation - Subsidiary of Holding Company
SBI Funds Management Ltd.-Associate Company
SBI Capital Markets Ltd.-Associate Company
SBI General Insuranc Company Limited- Subsidiary company of Holding company
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited, Subsidiary company of Holding company
Transactions with related parties  As at March 31, 2023 
Nature of transaction Key managerial 

person
 Body corporates 

where control 
exists 

Share Capital
Opening Balance 3,000 
Add : Issued during the Period   -   
Closing Balance  3,000 

Deposits
Opening Balance    8,446.13 
 Add: Fixed Deposit made during the Period  11,534.42 
 Less : Matured during the Period    6,807.05 
 Closing Balance  13,173.50 
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Interest Accrued during the Period
Opening Balance   209.13 
Add : Accrued during the Period   437.47 
Less : Received during the Period  67.98 
Closing Balance   578.62 

Reimbursement of salary and other employee benefit
Opening Balance  54.20 
 Add: Reimbursement bill received during the period   394.64 
 Less : Payment during the period   420.94 
 Closing Balance  27.90 

Interest Received   498.20 
Rent Paid  31.87 
Insurance    5.74 
CSR Donation paid  51.51 
Gratuity Premim payment  23.66 
Royaly Paid   103.95 

Salary Paid to KMPs during the period

MD & CEO     53.53 
Company Secretory     16.65 
Chief Financial Officer     45.58 

29. Maturity Analysis
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are 
expected to be recovered or settled.

As at Within After As at Within After

March-23 12 
months

12 
months March-22 12 

months
12 

months
ASSETS
 Financial Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents   1,531.98   1,531.98   -     575.14   575.14    -   
 Bank balance other than above  11,717.37   -   11,717.37   7,959.75 2,623.69  5,336.07 
 Securities for trade     -      -   
 Receivables 
  Trade Receivables   1,268.02   1,268.02   -     1,111.47   1,111.47    -   
   Other Receivables     -      -   
 Investments    0.10    -      0.10   0.10     -      0.10 
 Other Financial assets    742.86     14.59     728.27   232.21    0.20     232.01 

 Total Financial Assets 15,260.31   2,814.58 12,445.73 9,878.67 4,310.50   
5,568.18 

 Non-financial Assets 
 Deferred tax Assets (Net)    3.13    3.13    -       -   
 Current tax asset (Net)     10.46   10.46     87.15     -      87.15 
 Investment Property     -      -   
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 Property, Plant and Equipment   1,421.98    -     1,421.98     68.21     -      68.21 
 Capital work in progress     -      -   
 Intangible assets     11.73    -     11.73     20.78     -      20.78 
 Other non-financial assets      95.29     95.29   -       65.85      65.85    -   
 Total Non - Financial Assets   1,542.58     95.29   1,447.29   241.99      65.85     176.14 

 TOTAL ASSETS 16,802.89 2,909.87 13,893.03 10,120.66 4,376.35 5,744.31 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
 LIABILITIES 
 Financial Liabilities 
 Payables     41.08     41.08   -       23.97      23.97    -   
 Borrowings  
 Other financial liabilities   1,359.99     93.67    1,266.31     36.46      27.62    8.84 
 Total Financial Liability   1,401.06   134.75    1,266.31     60.42      51.58    8.84 

 Non-Financial Liabilities 
 Deferred tax Liabilities (Net)     -      -     -     1.04     -      1.04 
 Provisions   241.57   217.90   23.67   269.49   161.83     107.66 
 Other non-financial liabilities   200.69   200.69   -     180.69   180.69    -   
 Total non financial Liability    442.26   418.59   23.67   451.22   342.52     108.70 

Total Liabilities 1,843.32  553.34 1,289.98 511.64  394.11  117.53 

Net 14,959.57 2,356.53 12,603.04 9,609.02 3,982.24 5,626.78 

Note 30 Ratio Analysis

NO. RATIOS Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

% 
Variance

Reason for 
Variance ( If 

Variance is more 
than 25%)

1 Current Ratio Current Assets / 
Current liability

Current 
Assets

Current 
Liabilities

                    
5.26 

                 
11.10 

                 
-52.64 

Current liabilities 
increased due to 
Higher amount 
of Lease liabilty 
due to shifting of 
office during the 

year

2 Debts- Equity 
Ratio Debt / Equity Debt Share Holders 

Fund  NA  NA  NA 

3 Debts Service 
Coverage Ratio

EBITDA / (Interst + 
Principals) EBITDA Interest + 

Principals
                 

77.13 
           
2,877.88 

                 
-97.32 

Higher Notional 
Interest due to 
new premises  

considered under 
lease

4 Return on Equity 
Ratio

NPAT / Share Holders 
Equity NPAT Share Holders 

Equity      0.36       0.54 -33.88 

5 Inventory 
Turnover Ratio

COGS / Avg 
Inventory COGS Avg Inventory  NA  NA  NA 



70SBI Pension Funds Private Limited

Annual Report 2022-23

6 Trade receivable 
turnover ratio

Net Credit Sales / 
Average Account 

receivable

Net Credit 
Sales

Average Account 
receivable

                 
10.26 

                 
10.30 

                    
-0.43 

7 Trade payable 
turnover ratio

Purchase / Average 
Account payable Purchase Average Account 

payable  NA  NA  NA 

8 Net Capital 
turnover ratio

Total Sales / Share 
holders equity

Total 
Revenue

Share holders 
equity

                    
0.87 

                    
1.19 

                 
-27.04 

Shareholders base 
is increased due 
to generation of 

profits
9 Net Profit Ratio NPAT / Revenue NPAT Total Revenue 0.40       0.45   -11.22 

10
Return on 
Capital 
employed

EBIT / Capital 
Employed EBIT Average Capital 

Employed 0.45 0.72 -37.25 

Shareholders base 
is increased due 
to generation of 

profits

11 Return on 
Investment

Investment Income / 
Investment

Investment 
Income

Average 
Investment 0.05      0.03 40.98 

Interest income 
on investment 

in fixed deposits 
have increased 
due to higher 
interesr rates
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NOTES



SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged Silver Award Winner as the 
Pension Manager of the year 2019 by Outlook Money.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged Silver Award Winner
as the Pension Manager of the year 2018 by Outlook Money in the year 2019.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged winner in the Pension Fund 
House Category by Outlook Money for the year 2017.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged winner in the
Best Pension Fund Manager Category by Outlook Money for the year 2016.Best Pension Fund Manager Category by Outlook Money for the year 2016.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged winner in the
Best Pension Fund Manager Category by Outlook Money for the year 2015.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged an award by
SKOCH Financial Inclusion (Pensions) – 2013.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged an award by SKOCH
Corporate Leadership (Pensions) – 2013.

SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged ‘Pension Fund of the Year’ SBI Pension Funds Private Limited was adjudged ‘Pension Fund of the Year’ 
for excellence in performance and customer service (to subscribers) by the 
Indian Pension Fund Congress 2012.




